
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

 
Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 

Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM |  
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

September 16, 2024 
 
5:00 PM  
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

 
COUNTY COMMISSION 
 
1. Meeting called to order by the Chairman of the Board. 

2. Roll call of members. 

3. Approval of Agenda. 

4. Consideration of the September 4, 2024, meeting minutes and bills. 

5. Consent Agenda: 
a. Abatements. 
b. Applications for licenses, raffles, and special events permits. 
c. Second access permit request.  

 

6. Comm. Munson: 

a. Provident Building remodel project discussion.   

7. County Planner Flanagan: 

a. Consideration of Fireworks ordinance.  

8. Public Health Director Renae Moch: 

a. Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health update.  

9. County Engineer Hall: 

a. 2nd approach permits. 

10. Sheriff Leben: 

a. 2024/2025 North Dakota Dept. of Transportation Traffic safety Grant.  

11. County Auditor Splonskowski: 

a. Crossroads Bar Liquor License application. 

 

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


12. County Finance Director Jacobs: 

a. Continuation of Property Tax estimates discussion. 

13. Other business. 

6:00 PM  

 Final Budget Public Hearing 

The Burleigh County Commission will conduct a PUBLIC HEARING for the purpose of 

discussion on the proposed budget as published & adoption of the FINAL BUDGET for the 

year ending on December 31, 2025. Any taxpayer who may appear shall be heard in favor of 

or against any proposed expenditures or tax levies. When the hearing shall be concluded, the 

board shall adopt such estimate as finally is determined. All taxes shall be levied in specific 

amounts and shall not exceed the amount specified in the published estimates.  

 

• Open PUBLIC HEARING regarding Final 2025 Budget • Motion to approve appropriate 

(maximum) levies for the Unorganized Townships.  

•  Motion to Adopt 2025 Final Budget & appropriate 2024 mill levies.  

 

14. Adjourn.  

 
The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on October 7, 2024.  

 
Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 



 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

SEPTEMBER 4TH, 2024 

 

5:00 PM Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Chairman Bitner were present. 

Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the meeting agenda, with an additional item for a discussion 
regarding property taxes. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the August 19th, 2024 meeting minutes and bills with the 
correction of adding the vote from the executive session to the August 19th minutes. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion 
carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file and available for 
inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Bede & Rose Marie 
Frank 2023 

East Hills Addn Rplt, Block 1, Lot 2 
Rolling Hills Condos II Unit 104 

50% Homestead 
Credit $312,500  $212,500  

Bob Gilbertson 2023 1986 Vista North 16 x 76, #3644V 

True and full 
value exceeds 
market value $23,426  $11,713  

Bob Gilbertson 2024 1986 Vista North 16 x 76, #3644V 

True and full 
value exceeds 
market value $23,426  $11,713  

 
Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Bede & Rose Marie Frank and Bob Gilbertson (2) plus the 
remainder of the consent agenda in its entirety. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Chairman Bitner began the discussion about property taxes – estimated notices of increase had recently gone out in the past 
couple of weeks and people were confused as to why the estimated figures show their property taxes increased, as the 
Commission assured the public that they didn’t anticipate a property tax increase. What it boiled down to was that even if the 
dollar amount remains at zero, the market can still fluctuate and thus affect the taxable value of the property and property taxes 
overall. 

Deetta Phelps came forward to the Commission and expressed concerns about the erosion of Sibley Drive into Apple Creek. 
Mrs. Phelps raised concerns about how the stone barrier preventing further erosion into Apple Creek doesn’t have any safety 
precautions (like guardrails) to prevent cars from sliding over the rocks and into the creek during the winter. Furthermore, Mrs. 
Phelps also highlighted concerns over the potential for ice jams in Apple Creek come next spring with the current situation. 

Burleigh County Superintendent of Schools Brent Dick presented to the Commission three applications for the Burleigh County 
School Reorganization Committee and recommended to approve the three candidates as presented. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 
2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the three candidates to the Burleigh County School Reorganization Committee. All members 
present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

County Engineer Hall came and presented a petition to the Commission requesting to vacate a roadway right of way, and 
recommended a public hearing for the petition be set for October 7th. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to set 
a public hearing for October 7th. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Hall then presented a request for appeal of 



 

the Highway Department’s denial of a 2nd approach permit up by the Misty Waters development; however, the Commission was 
uncomfortable with making a decision at this time without more details regarding the situation. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by 
Comm. Schwab to table the item for another meeting until further information is provided. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. Hall then presented a pavement waiver request near Sterling township and recommended approving the 
proposal. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the proposal. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. 

HR Director Binder showcased an updated version of the county’s Risk Management Policy to the Commission and asked for its 
approval. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the updated Risk Management Policy. All members 
present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Binder then went on to say that open enrollment for 2025 benefits will take place from 
October 7th through November 1st. 

County Recorder Hanson presented to the Commission a salary variance request for a county employee transferring over to the 
Recorder’s office. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the salary variance request. All members 
present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Comm. Munson unveiled a joint powers agreement proposal for Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health Services between the city of 
Bismarck and Burleigh County; motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the joint powers agreement 
proposal. Comm. Munson, Woodcox, and Bakken voted “AYE”; Comm. Schwab and Bitner voted “NAY”. Motion carried. 

Comm. Schwab gave an update on the CO2 pipeline, suggesting that the Commission begin sending certified letters to Summit 
Carbon Solutions to inform them that they’re on the agenda and notify them to attend, or to ask Summit why they aren’t showing 
up to the county commission meetings to argue their case. A consensus was reached by the commissioners to draft a concrete 
list of questions to Summit by next meeting. No further action was needed. 

On behalf of County Planner Flanagan, Comm. Munson presented to the Commission the findings from the August 29th, 2024 
Planning Commission meeting, stating that they denied an amendment to Article 8, Section 28 due to the need to continue 
hammering out the finer details. 

Chairman Bitner informed the Commission that they received a draft of a bid for contract for the Provident building’s fire 
suppression systems before the winter. 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman  
 
 
 

 
  
 



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-665 Connie Ensz 2022 Lot 3 & E 1/2 of Lot 4, Block 9, Riverview 20% Homestead Credit $132,300 $107,300

24-666 Connie Ensz 2023 Lot 3 & E 1/2 of Lot 4, Block 9, Riverview 50% Homestead Credit $178,900 $89,450

24-676 Dustin & Deann Zaun 2024 Lot 8, Block 5, Island Park Est
True and full value 

exceeds market value $498,500 $466,200

24-685 Kent & Renee Ward 2024
Auditor's Lot B of Lot 1, Block 1, Ash Land 
Estates

True and full value 
exceeds market value $733,300 $659,300

24-686 Mark & Shirley Voss 2024 Pt sect 28-138-80 Home is uninhabitable $108,300 $43,800









 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 6 



Addenda item for September 16th, 2024 Meeting 
 
Action Requested: Consider purchasing another building rather than remodel the Provident Building. 
 
Description:  
After previewing the projected remodel costs of the Provident Building, I wanted to look at other 
options. The projected cost is several million dollars above our initial estimates. 
 
Attached is a brochure for a building in downtown Bismarck that is for sale and has enough room for our 
operations.    
 
 
Action needed: none at this time.  
 



























 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 





 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 9 











 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 10 









 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 11 















 

 

 

PUBLIC 
HEARING 



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
September 16, 2024 

 
Burleigh County Commissioners: 

 

The following is the final budget for Burleigh County for the calendar year 2025.  The document contains the 
budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds. 

 
The County Commission’s goal for the 2025 General Fund and Road and Bridge budget is to maintain services at 

the current level and to remain sustainable while collecting the same dollar amount as was levied in the 2024 

budget. 
 

Some high points discussed by the Commission for the 2025 calendar year budget have been: 
 

1. Remodel of the Provident Building to consolidate our departments currently within the City/County 
Building into the Provident Building already owned by the County. 

2. Update the Boiler System within the Courthouse. 

3. Employee retention and recruitment. 
 

The County Commission approved 4 additional positions (FTEs) requested in the 2024 budget.  One FTE Planner 

for the Planning Department, three FTE’s State’s Attorney – Attorney II, Attorney I, and Legal Assistant III. 
As well as the continued employment of four Detention officers that were previously paid for through 

ARPA funds, these four positions would now be paid for through the General fund.  
 
The total 2024 General Fund Budget is $39,363,592, with $28,183,936 or 71% coming from Salary and Fringe 

Benefits. 
 

The total expenditure Budget for 2025 is $80,232,866 compared to 2024 at $77,611,661 for an increase of 

$2,621,205. This is mainly due to the increase directed by the Commission of the Road and Bridge fund to reflect 
the 2024 expenditure allocation amount, as well as the increases to the General fund budget and Special revenue 

budgets. The increase to the Road and Bridge fund is being offset by a potential General Reserve fund transfer as 
well as other funding sources so that the amount levied in property taxes remains the same as last year. The 

increase to the General Fund is also being offset by a General Fund Reserve transfer as well as a transfer from 

the Courthouse Maintenance fund for the boiler system so that the amount levied in Property taxes is the same 
as last year. The Main drivers for the potential budget increase for the 2025 budget are: 

 
1. $3,019,389 for Salary and Fringe Benefits including all proposed new FTE’s County wide. 

2. $2,354,612 for the Highway Department. 

3. $1,500,000 for a new heating system for the Courthouse. 
 

The total amount to be levied from Burleigh County approved Preliminary budgets for 2025 is as follows: 
a. General Fund …………………$21,802,760 

b. Unorganized Townships…. $867,200 
c. Road and Bridge ……..…….$2,410,657 

d. Job Development …..………$80,760 

e. County Library………………..$327,115 
f. Senior Citizens………………..$765,155 

g. Veteran Services……………..$513,949 



2 

 

h. County Agent………………….$410,362 
i. Weed Board……………………$353,923 

 
The total amount to be levied from Burleigh County approved budgets for 2024 is as follows: 

a. General Fund …………………$21,805,080 

b. Unorganized Townships…. $813,500 
c. Road and Bridge ……..…….$2,413,491 

d. Job Development …..………$0 
e. County Library………………..$320,803 

f. Senior Citizens………………..$443,833 
g. Veteran Services……………..$464,686 

h. County Agent………………….$261,620 

i. Weed Board……………………$217,713 
 

Total 2025 amount to be levied…………$27,531,881 
Total 2024 amount levied…………………$26,740,726 

 

 
The County used the 2024 true and full property valuation for the 2025 property tax calculations.  Property values 

increased on average 5% from the previous year. 
 

In the 2025 budget, the County Commission will use a collection of $30,591,951 in property tax revenues, which 
is an increase of $1,172,278 from the previous year. New growth amounts to $511,845 for a net difference of 

$660,433 on existing parcels.   

 
This equates to a decrease on a $300,000 home inside city limits of $9.72 and a home outside of city limits of 

$1.35 for a decrease of .72 and .1 mills respectively. 
 

The current preliminary budget includes a 2 step and 2% COLA increase to salaries to continue efforts to remain 

competitive in the increasingly difficult task of employee recruitment and retention.  
 

No income from sales tax revenues has been taken into consideration in these calculations. 
 

The Health Insurance committee recommends an 8% increase in the plan premiums for 2025.  

 
Debt service funds are established to collect special assessments annually and make payments on existing debt 

service.  These funds are budgeted based on the annual debt service needed to pay for special assessment bonds 
using special assessment collections. 

 
The County continues to have new construction in both residential and commercial development within the 

county.  This creates opportunities for new growth but also creates challenges to increase services and provide 

infrastructure maintenance and improvements. The County is continuing to feel the effects of inflation, resulting 
in the increased costs of services. Many estimates were made based on the information available at the time this 

preliminary budget was approved.  The County will continue to monitor inflationary impacts on operations to 
create strategies to offset cost increases while creating minimal impact on the taxpayers as the county continues 

to grow and expand. 

 
A summary of Expenditures and Revenues for the 2025 General Fund Balance is: 

 Revenue:   $35,078,145 
 Expenditure: $39,363,592 

 Difference: ($4,285,477) To be paid for out of General Fund Reserves for Courthouse 
Heating System and Property tax buydown. 

 

Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

TO:  Burleigh County Commission  

FROM:  Mark Splonskowski  
DATE:  September 16, 2024 

SUBJECT: 2025 Preliminary Budget Changes 
 

 

 
1. Highway Department 

a. Increase budget to amount from 2024 (16,609,220). 
b. Collect same dollar amount as in 2024. 

c. Plan to pay for budget through Legacy funds, Highway Dept. Savings, General Fund Transfer, selling 
of existing equipment, Prairie Dog funds, and the 2024 mill levy (3.61).   

 

2. Bismarck/ Burleigh Public Health: 
a. Pay 25% of the bill instead of 50%. Removed $582,802 from original preliminary budget. Increase 

over last year = $282,501 
3. County Board 

a. Remove County Administrator. Removed $220,965.27 from original preliminary budget. 

 
4. Auditor’s office.  

a. Remove Accountant II. Removed $126,246.92 from original preliminary budget. 
 

5. Planning Dept. 

a. Remove Comprehensive plan renewal. Removed $90,000 from original preliminary budget.  
 

6. TOTAL removed from General Fund expenditures = $1,020,013. 
7. Total from Highway Dept.  

 
a. Increased expenditure budget 2,164,194. Reduced mill levy request by 4 mills. (from 

7.61 to 3.61). 

 
 

 
 

 

 


	Binder2.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Aa combined packet.pdf
	September 16 2024
	September 4th, 2024 Minutes
	Abatement letter Sept 16, 2024
	Sheet1

	Consent second access permit request
	#6
	Munson Agenda request September 4, 2024
	Munson
	#7
	Mitch_Consideration of Fireworks Ordinance
	#9
	Hall 2nd approach permits
	#10
	Leben grant
	#11
	CROSSROADS BAR OPERATIONS LLC_Redacted

	Public Hearing
	Final Budget Summary Letter Set. 11, 2024


	2025 Preliminary Budget Changes from July 15 2024



